

# Volunteer and Future Gardeners Trainee Handbook

## **Contents**

- 1. About Bankside Open Spaces Trust (BOST)
- 2. Where might you volunteer or train?
- 3. Important names and addresses
- 4. Why volunteer?
- 5. Volunteer roles at BOST
- 6. Volunteer manager/lead staff member
- 7. Recruitment Process
- 8. Reviews
- 9. Future Gardeners
- 10. Future Gardeners Staff
- 11. Future Gardeners Recruitment Process
- 12. Breaks and refreshments
- 13. Smoking
- 14. Toilets and handwashing
- 15. Alcohol and drugs
- 16. What to wear
- 17. Sharps (needles, knives, broken glass)
- 18. Tool stores
- 19. Covid-19
- 20. Equity, Diversity and Inclusion
- 21. Respecting boundaries
- 22. Confidentiality and Data Protection
- 23. Social Media and WhatsApp Considerations
- 24. Practical health and safety
- 25. Safeguarding and Disclosure and Barring Service Check
- 26. References
- 27. If you are on benefits
- 28. Your time volunteers
- 29. Lunch expenses
- 30. Travel expenses
- 31. Liability for belongings
- 32. Bikes
- 33. Using the phone
- 34. What to do if you are sick on a volunteer or trainee session day
- 35. If we cancel a session
- 36. What to do if things aren't working out

We do hope that you enjoy your experience at BOST. We couldn't do what we do without the valuable efforts of all of our volunteers and trainees; we are really pleased that you want to participate with us!

## 1. About BOST

Bankside Open Spaces Trust is an environmental and volunteering charity. In 2020 we celebrated 20 years of protecting, preserving and enhancing parks, gardens and other amenities in London's SE1 and surrounding areas. We were set up in 2000 by a group of local residents with the aim of improving people's health and well-being by making where they live and work greener and more beautiful.

We manage and maintain open spaces, welcome volunteers from both the community and the corporate sector, run regular gardening groups, support park steering groups, organise and take part in public events and educational projects, and offer advice to others. We collaborate closely with local residents and businesses to champion green spaces.

Thousands of people enjoy our open spaces every day. Each of our sites is unique, with its own atmosphere, identity and sense of place. Our spaces include Red Cross Garden, Marlborough Sports Garden, Waterloo Millennium Green and Tate Community Garden.

Volunteers and trainees are an important part of our delivery in the local area. We wouldn't be able to do what we do without them.

# 2. Where might you volunteer or train?

Open Space	Address
Red Cross Garden	50 Redcross Way, SE1 1HA
Waterloo Millennium Green	Baylis Road, SE1 7AA
Living Space Centre	1 Coral Street, SE1 7BE
Crossbones Garden	Union St, London SE1 1SD
Marlborough Sports Garden	11-25 Union St, London, SE1 1SD
Diversity Garden	5 King James Street, SE1 0RR
Nelson Square Gardens	Nelson Square, off Blackfriars Rd, SE1 0QA
Christ Church Garden	27 Blackfriars Rd, SE1 8NY
Mint Street Park	Corner of Southwark Bridge Rd and Marshalsea Rd, SE1
	1QP
Pattison House Garden	Off Redcross Way
Little Dorrit Park	Little Dorrit Place off Borough High Street
St George's Garden	Tabard Street off Borough High Street
Community Garden at Tate	East side of the front landscape, SE1 9TC
Modern	
Winchester Palace Garden	Clink Street, SE1 9DG

We support and manage various parks, gardens and open spaces and where you volunteer depends on the days you are available and where the tasks are. Future Gardeners visit many of our sites and those of other organisations during the course. Most of our spaces have a steering group which is an open forum for anyone who wishes to influence the open space and the way it is run.

# 3. Important names and addresses

Our main office is at 56a Southwark Bridge Road, SE1 0AS - 020 7403 3393.

We have an additional office at the **Red Cross Garden, 50 Redcross Way, SE1 1HA**, and our **Living Space Community Centre, 1 Coral Street, SE1 7BE**.

## BOST has 18 members of staff:

Chief Executive Officer Charlotte Gilsenan Head of Parks William Rallison

Volunteer Coordinator Marta Pascuales Argente

Community Engagement FacilitatorMustafa KorelMarketing and Events ManagerMary TraffordParks ManagerJoe MayhookHead of Sport and DevelopmentJack Harrison

Activity Coordinator and Salesforce Administrator Krystian Kowalski

Green Hub Coordinator Barney Gilks

Office Supervisor and Administrator

Fundraising Manager

Community Gardener

Matilda Mercer

Future Gardeners Project Manager

Future Gardeners Project Coordinator

Head of Living Space and Operations

Living Space Duty Manager

Nikki Kadzeya

Waterloo Millennium Green Warden Dionne Jackson

Sessional Gardeners

The staff team meets every month to discuss and take forward the work of BOST and future plans.

BOST has 9 trustees who meet 5 times a year to oversee the work of the organisation. The Board of Trustees is made up of local people and those with an interest or understanding of horticulture and community gardening.

# 4. Why volunteer?

The organisation is built on the efforts of our volunteers who make huge contributions to the activities of BOST. Local resident participation and the contribution of volunteers are two essential elements in BOST's vision and mission. Volunteering with BOST is a two-way relationship. There are things that both you as the volunteer and BOST as an organisation can gain from the relationship and we want our volunteers to get as much out of time with us as is possible.

By volunteering at BOST you could benefit by:

- Contributing positively to change in the area
- Being involved in local activity
- Developing skills, knowledge and experience about plants and gardening
- Developing and sharing knowledge of the fascinating history of the area
- Taking on increasing levels of responsibility
- Getting involved in direct decision-making about the local area
- Improving your physical fitness and mental health
- Improving your job opportunities
- Getting experience working as part of a team
- Meeting new people
- Helping local groups to progress their activities with support from BOST

#### 5. Volunteer roles at BOST

There are several ways that you could be involved such as:

- Joining a steering group and helping with decisions about our parks
- Getting involved with practical gardening within a corporate group or as an individual either at our parks or on your own estate
- Helping the local community in greening the area
- Becoming a volunteer warden at Crossbones Garden
- Helping with consultation on changes to the green spaces in the area
- Volunteering with children and/or families at one of our gardening and environmental clubs
- Taking part in a fundraising challenge event
- Helping different businesses in the local community get involved with BOST
- Helping out in the office
- Helping at our events
- Becoming a trustee

Volunteer role descriptions are available from the Volunteer Manager.

## 6. Volunteer Coordinator/lead staff member

We have a dedicated Volunteer Coordinator in place who oversees volunteering at BOST. This person is in direct contact with staff members who facilitate gardening groups, Crossbones Garden and volunteering and is the direct point of contact for all volunteers. The Volunteer Coordinator at BOST is Marta Pascual Argentes, she can be contacted on volunteer@bost.org.uk or on 020 7403 3393.

When you start volunteering at BOST regularly you will have a member of staff assigned to you as your manager, this is usually the gardening group leader or Crossbones Project Manager. If you have any questions or problems, then this is the member of staff that you should go to for help. If your manager is not around and you encounter a problem or have a question, please contact the Volunteer Coordinator or another member of BOST staff for help.

You will be informed of the name of your group leader or project manager when you are sent a welcome email.

## 7. Recruitment Process

If you are aiming to be a regular volunteer, you will first fill in a Volunteer Application form and then you will be invited in for an informal chat or for a phone or Zoom conversation with the Volunteer Coordinator. This is the time where we can work out whether volunteering for BOST is right for you and which role or session is most suitable.

After this short meeting the Volunteer Coordinator will contact your references. You will also be asked to sign up to our Volunteer Agreement. Our Agreement covers the following:

- Health and Safety
- Equity, Diversity and Inclusion
- Respecting boundaries
- Confidentiality
- Safeguarding
- Expenses
- Tetanus

You will also be sent a copy of our risk assessment, Tips for Safe Gardening leaflet and our Covid-19 Protocol.

Subject to satisfactory reference(s), the Volunteer Agreement and there being a place available in a suitable role/group you will be offered a trial volunteering session.

At your trial session your group leader or project manager will do a short induction covering further Health and Safety points including safe lifting techniques, emergency exits and procedures, safe tool use and storage, toilets, importance of breaks, location of drinking water, glove wearing, hand washing and sharps and poo procedure (all covered below). For Crossbones Graveyard an onsite induction will take place and include all relevant information and instruction for this role.

## 8. Reviews

Every six months your manager or the Volunteer Coordinator will have an informal chat or carry out a survey with you and review the volunteering you have undertaken. You will be asked about how things are going for you and if you are gaining the experience that you want. You will also be told about any changes or new projects at BOST and asked if there are any other volunteering opportunities that you are interested in.

## 9. Future Gardeners

Launched in 2016, Future Gardeners is a free, innovative training and work experience scheme, giving participants the core skills to gain entry level jobs in the horticulture industry without

having any previous experience or specialist education. Open to all who want to try out a career in gardening, Future Gardeners is an educational scheme that doesn't require entrants to have minimum educational qualifications.

As well as pre-apprenticeship training and a City & Guilds qualification, budding horticulturists will have their career options enhanced by being introduced to key employers in the sector, including some at London's finest parks and gardens.

76% of Future Gardeners who completed the course are now working in the horticultural industry.

Bankside Open Spaces Trust has teamed up with The Worshipful Company of Gardeners and the Royal Parks Guild to deliver the programme. The course is completely free and runs for 14 weeks – this is part time at two days a week and a two week full-time work placement.

Sessions are based at Living Space (near Waterloo) and Walworth Garden (near Kennington). The course includes studying for a Level 2 City & Guilds horticultural qualification plus visits and work days to other locations across London.

## 10. Future Gardeners Staff Members

Louisa Mansfield is the Future Gardeners Project Manager. She manages the recruitment for the course and can be contacted at <a href="mailto:louisa@bost.org.uk">louisa@bost.org.uk</a> or on 020 7403 3393.

Shereen Blake is the Future Gardeners Coordinator and supports Louisa in the smooth running and recruitment of the course. She can be contacted at <a href="mailto:shereen@bost.org.uk">shereen@bost.org.uk</a> or on 020 7403 3393.

## 11. Future Gardeners Recruitment Process

The Future Gardeners course runs three times a year starting in January, May and September. The course is very popular and over-subscribed. To apply please complete the form at www.bost.org.uk/future-gardeners. Applicants must be unemployed and actively looking for work in the horticultural industry.

When volunteering or training with BOST please remember the following:

# 12. Breaks and refreshments

Please make sure you take breaks whenever you need them. If you are feeling tired, out of breath or fatigued take a break and inform your leader. Do not spend too long at a computer or working outdoors when it is very hot or very cold. You are welcome to make drinks throughout the day using the kitchen located at either of the BOST offices. Teas, coffee and sugar are stored near to the kettle and milk in the fridge. Please bring your own reusable bottle of water.

# 13. Smoking

Smoking is not allowed in any BOST building. Smoking is allowed outdoors in public spaces but we ask you not to smoke when there are children present, whilst undertaking any work or whilst wearing a BOST tabard. Please pick up and dispose of your cigarette stubs safely.

# 14. Toilets and Handwashing

Always wash hands after gardening and pond activities, before eating or smoking. Toilets are located at the Red Cross Garden office and Living Space and are available for you to use; please ask for the toilet key at Red Cross. If we have run out of soap, toilet paper or hand towels please inform a member of staff. If you are working at another park in the local area, ask your manager who will direct you to the nearest toilet. Hand gel is available onsite where there are no toilets.

# 15. Alcohol and drugs

It is not acceptable to be under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs whilst volunteering or training at BOST. If you are suspected to be under the influence, we will ask you to go home and return another day when you are no longer under the influence. We discourage the public from drinking alcohol in our parks and open spaces. Please let us know on your application form if you take prescription medication that may affect your abilities.

## 16. What to wear

When gardening you should wear old clothes or clothes that you don't mind getting dirty. Please do not wear clothing with slogans that may be offensive to others. We recommend you wear clothes that cover your arms and legs to avoid scratches. Check the weather beforehand and bring extra layers and/or waterproof clothing as needed. In the eventuality of wet weather we have some water proof trousers and jackets that you can borrow. If it is hot and sunny, please wear a hat and sunscreen as we cannot provide these.

When gardening please wear closed-toe, sturdy shoes such as walking boots or trainers. Do not wear flip-flops or sandals. Where high risk activities are taking place we will provide steel toe-capped boots or waders for pond activities.

Gloves must be worn when gardening and when working in or around ponds. We provide gloves.

If you are taking part in an office based session you can wear casual clothing.

# 17. Sharps (needles, knives, broken glass)

Although very rare, be cautious when reaching low down as sometimes sharps are pushed in bushes or thick growth. Avoid putting hands and arms into piles of leaves, rubbish or flower or shrub beds. Always use tools instead of hands. If you find needles, knives or broken glass, do

not touch them; report it to the group leader who will deal with it.

## 18. Tool stores

BOST has tool stores at most of the sites. Please do not enter the tool store without a BOST staff member unless you have been fully inducted into the tool store area. Do not allow children to enter the tool store under any circumstances.

## 19. Covid-19

Please do not attend volunteering if you have symptoms of Covid-19 (high temperature, new continuous cough or loss or change to your taste or smell). Please do not attend if you have tested positive for Covid-19. We ask all volunteers to continue to practice good hand hygiene and we continue to wipe down tools and surfaces regularly.

# 20. Equity, Diversity and Inclusion

At BOST, we recognise the importance of embracing diversity and banning discrimination. Staff and volunteers have a mutual responsibility to make sure that all feel welcome. When participating at BOST we must be non-judgmental of different lifestyles, gender, abilities, disabilities, ethnicity, religious beliefs or sexual orientation.

We will not tolerate discrimination or harassment in any form. We have a diverse group of individuals working, volunteering and training with us and with different issues that include mental health issues, learning disabilities, homelessness, isolation and others. We ask that you are sensitive to these issues when volunteering with us. Prejudice or inappropriate behaviour towards volunteers, trainees, staff, other team members or the public will not be tolerated. If you feel this has happened while you are participating and you feel able to, you should challenge the person respectfully and acknowledge that the person might not realise they've offended anyone. Be prepared to challenge your own beliefs as well as the beliefs of others – this includes BOST staff. If this is difficult to discuss or badly received then tell your manager, Volunteer Coordinator, Future Gardeners Project Manager or the CEO if your manager is involved in an issue.

BOST promotes equity, diversity and inclusion for all in every area of its work, service delivery, employment and management and will encourage its members, volunteers and trainees to do the same.

BOST has a full Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Policy. Please contact the Volunteer Coordinator or Future Gardeners Project Manager if you wish to see a copy.

# 21. Respecting boundaries

We encourage staff, volunteers and trainees to build strong and supportive relationships with each other; however, we ask everyone to respect each other's personal boundaries. This

includes respecting a person's right to privacy, holding views or beliefs that others may not agree with and working without fear of harassment. If you have any concerns about the behaviour of a BOST volunteer, trainee or employee, or if you feel that you have been affected by this behaviour, let a member of BOST staff know. Staff, volunteers and trainees are asked to keep their involvement with each other on a professional level which means staff are not allowed to see volunteers or trainees outside of the work/volunteer/trainee hours or share personal phone numbers.

BOST's policy requires that volunteers and trainees do not to approach staff or other volunteers or trainees for money, loans or gifts as it puts everyone in a potentially unpleasant position and BOST cannot guarantee repayment. If you are approached and asked for money, loans or gifts, please say that BOST does not allow it and discretely inform a member of staff of the incident. We recognise that people go through difficult personal or financial situations and want to help where possible. If you need additional support please speak to a member of staff who will try to signpost you to the best available service.

# 22. Confidentiality and Data Protection

The information you give when you register will be used to assess your suitability as a potential volunteer or trainee and match you to the most appropriate roles and sessions available at the time of application. BOST will use this information to contact you with information about the days, times and locations of your volunteering or training sessions. We will use the method of communication (usually phone and/or email) that you give permission for. You can choose to opt in to our newsletter and you can then unsubscribe from this mailing list at any time by contacting the Volunteer Manager or Future Gardeners Project Manager. We may share results of research that we carry out into the use of our services with third parties but this information will always be anonymised and will not contain your personal information.

If you start participating with BOST, we will keep your information for 3 years after you leave. If you don't start participating, we will destroy this information after 6 months. We take looking after your information very seriously. We've implemented appropriate physical, technical and organisational measures to protect the personal information we have under our control, both on and off-line, from improper access, use, alteration, destruction and loss. BOST's privacy policy is available to read online here: https://www.bost.org.uk/privacy-notice. Please ask if you wish to see a printed copy. Our Data Protection Officer is Charlotte Gilsenan, <a href="mailto:charlotte@bost.org.uk">charlotte@bost.org.uk</a>, 020 7403 3393.

We want to provide you with the best experience we can by accommodating your needs and providing suitable tasks. In order to do this we will ask your permission to share physical and mental health support needs with the leader of your volunteer group/Future Gardeners Project staff.

We expect volunteers and trainees to respect the confidentiality of other volunteers and trainees and only share information with others where necessary for safety or safeguarding reasons.

If you are volunteering in BOST offices you will be asked to sign a Confidentiality Agreement.

# 23. Social Media and WhatsApp Considerations

We ask volunteers to please be mindful if making their volunteer role with BOST part of their social media identity, as this can cause a conflict of interest. We kindly ask that if you are mentioning your volunteering role through these channels to please make it clear that your personal social media accounts reflect your own views and not those of BOST.

Please also be considerate if you are taking photos whilst volunteering and posting these on social media. Please ask other volunteers or those in the picture before taking photos and do not include people's faces.

A full copy of our Social Media Policy for Volunteers is available upon request.

When you sign up to volunteer, you can opt in to be contacted via WhatsApp. Some of our gardening groups and Crossbones wardens have WhatsApp groups that are regulated by a member of BOST staff. These are a place to discuss volunteer activities, share stories or experiences of your time volunteering and other information that may be relevant to your volunteer role.

The WhatsApp groups are to be a welcoming and safe space and communications must remain friendly and positive. We ask volunteers to please act in a respectful and polite manner when using the WhatsApp groups and to not use them to report any issues with their roles, other volunteers or staff members.

If any volunteers feel that they are having any issues surrounding their volunteering, they should contact their project manager or the Volunteer Coordinator, where the Volunteer Problem Solving Policy will be followed.

Copies of the WhatsApp Code of Conduct and Volunteer Problem Solving Policy are available, please contact the Volunteer Coordinator if you would like to see them.

# 24. Practical health and safety

At your first session you will be given a copy of our risk assessment and our Safe Tips for Gardening leaflet. You will also be given guidelines about participating on other BOST sites and the potential dangers at each site at the beginning of each session. If you are volunteering as a Crossbones Warden you will be given an onsite induction. Please follow all health and safety instructions you are given. In addition to the above, more health and safety considerations are as follows:

In the event of fire:

- Dial 999
- Notify staff and other volunteers of the threat
- Leave the building via the quickest, safest route do not go back for personal belongings
- Do not return to the building or site until given permission to do so

Fire assembly point at Red Cross Garden: At the Sundial inside the main entrance gates.

**Fire assembly point at Diversity Garden:** Assemble at Library Street or follow instructions given by the emergency services.

**Fire assembly point on other BOST sites:** In the event of fire you should take instruction from a BOST staff member who will advise you on where to assemble.

#### **First Aid**

A first aid box is kept in our tool sheds and in the Red Cross office. A first aid kit will be taken to gardening sessions outside of these locations. If you are hurt, please tell the group leader immediately and they will assess whether you can be treated from the first aid kit or whether you need to be seen by a medical professional. All our group leaders are first aid trained.

# **Manual Handling**

Please familiarise yourself with the Health & Safety Executive guide on Manual Handling at <a href="https://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/indg143.PDF">https://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/indg143.PDF</a>.

Remember to bend your knees and keep your back straight when lifting.

#### **Mobile Phones**

If you need to use your phone please take a break and remove your BOST tabard. Please do not make calls or use headphones whilst participating with us.

#### **Gloves**

We will provide gardening gloves which you should wear while gardening. There are different types of bacteria which can affect you if your hands are unprotected. All equipment will be provided and please do use anything that the group leader asks you to. Please cover any open wounds with a plaster.

## **Ponds**

Gloves must be worn when taking part in activities in or around ponds.

## Tools and tidy site

Your group leader will brief you on health and safety and how to use the gardening tools. Please ensure tools are stored safely so as not to cause a tripping hazard. Always leave paths free from rubbish as the park will still be open to the public.

## Volunteering in the sun

Make sure you wear sunscreen (bring your own), wear a hat and bring a bottle of water.

## Dog Poo

Please report to the group leader who will deal with it, please do not touch.

#### **Tetanus**

Tetanus cover is not a requirement of volunteering or training with BOST but it is recommended for those participating outdoors. Speak to your GP to find out more.

## **Lone Working**

We do not encourage lone working situations for volunteers or trainees. If you want to work alone then speak to your manager about this.

For Crossbones Wardens a 'buddy' system is used where there will always be more than one volunteer (or staff member) on site at a time. All shifts will be in daylight hours, volunteers must clear and leave the garden by sunset and only be there at times stated on the Team Up Calendar. Emergency procedures for Crossbones will be explained to you at your induction, details are also on the wall in the Crossbones hut.

## **Health and Safety Policy**

Please contact the Volunteer Coordinator or Future Gardeners Project Manager if you wish to see a copy of the BOST Health and Safety Policy.

# **Tips for Safe Gardening leaflet**

You will get a copy during the online induction process.

# 25. Safeguarding / Disclosure and Barring Service Check

If your role is with children or vulnerable adults on a regular and unsupervised basis, you may need to undertake a Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) check. BOST will let you know if your role requires this. The majority of BOST participants do not need a DBS check and no current, regular gardening volunteers, wardens or trainees are required to undertake one.

Most of our roles don't involve participating with children or young people, however there will often be children or young people in the vicinity. No inappropriate language or behaviour please and do not put yourself in a position where you are alone with a child. BOST has a Child Safeguarding and Vulnerable Adults Policy. Please contact the Volunteer Coordinator or Future Gardeners Project Manager if you wish to see a copy.

## 26. References

All BOST volunteers and trainees are required to provide at least one satisfactory reference.

# 27. If you are on benefits

If you are on benefits you will need to speak to your Jobcentre Plus (JCP) advisor about how participating with BOST may affect your benefit. For example, if you are on jobseekers allowance, there is no limit to the amount of time you can volunteer but you must be still be actively seeking a full-time job, able to go to job interviews at 48 hours' notice and be available to work at one week's notice. If you are receiving benefits please check with JCP as the guidelines are always changing and it's dependent on your personal circumstances.

## 28. Your time - volunteers

It is up to you how much of your time you want to give to the work of BOST, how often or how regularly you want to volunteer. We ask that you do not spend more than 16 hours per week volunteering and take part in a maximum of two volunteer sessions a week. To manage our parks and gardens, if you are planning on changing your days or how often you volunteer, please let the Volunteer Coordinator know.

At Crossbones, to provide a service to the community we would like to keep the opening hours as regular as possible. Once you have committed to a shift please try to ensure you keep the appointment unless unavoidable. Opening hours and shifts tend to be 12:00 – 14:00, Wednesday to Friday, although other hours may be available at other times. You will be sent the link to the online calendar on which you can book your shifts.

# 29. Lunch expenses

If you volunteer for a minimum of 5 hours in one day then BOST will provide you with a meal deal. This is to provide you with lunch and a drink for consumption during your volunteering hours. Your session leader will take your order and purchase this for you.

# 30. Travel expenses

BOST has limited funds to cover travel expenses where volunteers or trainees are on benefits, homeless or unemployed or where financial difficulties mean covering travel provides a barrier to participating. If you feel you may be eligible please contact the Volunteer Coordinator or Future Gardeners Project Manager in confidence. BOST has a Volunteer Expenses Policy, please ask the Volunteer Coordinator for a copy.

# 31. Liability for belongings

BOST takes no responsibility for participants' personal belongings. Whilst belongings can be left in offices, we take no liability for items going missing.

# 32. Bikes

If you cycle to your session you may leave your bicycle locked up on site at your own risk. At Red Cross Garden the best place to lock your bike is the bike railings outside of Pattison House. There is also a bike rack outside the Eco House.

# 33. Using the phone

You may need to use the office phone whilst participating. Please only do so in an emergency or if there is something urgent that you need to tell someone, such as changes to childcare arrangements or emergency family issues. Please ask permission to use the phone before you make the call.

# 34. What to do if you are sick on a volunteer or training session day

If you are sick or unable to attend you do not need to let us know on every occasion. If you think you will be off for several weeks please do let us know if and when you hope to return. Contact either your session leader or the Volunteer Coordinator via email or phone. BOST office number: 020 7403 3393.

If you are unable to attend a Future Gardener session, please contact the Project Manager on 07719 990 067.

## 35. If we cancel a session

Although it is rare we may need to cancel a session if a staff member is ill and we can't arrange cover or in the case of extreme weather conditions. We will always do our best to let you know in advance of a cancelled session. Do let us know if you plan to attend a different session to normal so we know to contact you.

# 36. What to do if things are not working out

If you are not enjoying being a volunteer or trainee, speak with your group leader, the Volunteer Coordinator or the Future Gardeners Project Manager. We will aim to change things to make participating a happier experience for you. If you are not happy with the way you have been treated you are entitled to make a complaint following the BOST Volunteer and Trainee Problem Solving Procedure. Please contact the Volunteer Coordinator or Future Gardeners Project Manager for a copy.

You may find that BOST isn't the place for you. If this happens you should let your manager know and they will ask to have a chat with you so that we can understand your reasons for leaving.

You may want to get a different experience within BOST or with another organisation; we may be able to put you in touch with other organisations.

We hope that you enjoy your time with us. If you have any other questions about BOST, volunteering or Future Gardeners, please don't hesitate to ask.

Please note: BOST has a separate volunteer policy other than this document. Please ask the Volunteer Coordinator if you wish to see this policy (Marta Pascual Argentes, volunteer@bost.org.uk, 020 7403 3393).